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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA 

 

 

CYNTHIA RUTHRAUFF, 
individually and on behalf of all others 

similarly situated, 

 

Plaintiff,  

 

v. 

 

LUMINESS DIRECT, LLC, a Texas 

limited liability company. 

 

  Defendant. 

 

 

 

Case No.  

 

 

COMPLAINT – CLASS 

ACTION 

 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

 

 

 

 

Plaintiff Cynthia Ruthrauff (“Ruthrauff” or “Plaintiff”) brings this Class 

Action Complaint and Demand for Jury Trial (“Complaint”) against Defendant 

Luminess Direct, LLC (“Luminess” or “Defendant”) to: (1) stop its practice of 

placing telemarketing text message calls to cellular telephones without procuring 

the necessary prior express written consent; (2) stop its practice of sending 

unsolicited text messages to cellular telephones even after the cellphone owner 

opted-out of the receipt of additional messages; and (3) obtain redress for all 

persons injured by its conduct. Plaintiff, for her Complaint, alleges as follows upon 

personal knowledge as to herself and her own acts and experiences, and, as to all 

Case 1:18-cv-00716-AT   Document 1   Filed 02/19/18   Page 1 of 23



 2 

other matters, upon information and belief, including investigation conducted by 

her attorneys.  

PARTIES 

 

 1. Plaintiff is a natural person and domiciled in the city of Acworth, 

Cobb County, Georgia. 

 2. Defendant Luminess Direct, LLC is a limited liability company 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Texas whose primary place of 

business is located at 12802 Capricorn Street, Stafford, Texas 77477.  

JURISDICTION & VENUE 

 

 3. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 

28 U.S.C. §1331, as the action arises under the Telephone Consumer Protection 

Act, 47 U.S.C. § 227, et seq. (“TCPA”), a federal statute. The Court also has 

subject matter jurisdiction under the Class Action Fairness Act, 28 U.S.C. § 1332 

(“CAFA”), because the alleged Classes consists of over 100 persons, there is 

minimal diversity, and the claims of the class members when aggregated together 

exceeds $5 million. Further, none of the exceptions to CAFA applies. 

 4. The Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant and venue is 

proper in this District because Defendant regularly conducts business in the State 

of Georgia and in this District and a substantial part of the events or omissions 
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giving rise to the claim occurred in this District. 

COMMON ALLEGATIONS OF FACT 

 

A. Bulk SMS Marketing 

 

5. In recent years, marketers who have felt stymied by federal laws 

limiting solicitation by telephone, fax machine, and e-mail have increasingly 

looked for alternative technologies through which to send bulk advertisements on 

the cheap. 

6. Bulk text messaging, or SMS marketing, has emerged as a direct 

method of communicating and soliciting customers and business. The term “Short 

Message Service” or “SMS” is a messaging system that allows cellular telephone 

subscribers to use their cellular telephones to send and receive short text messages, 

usually limited to 160 characters. An SMS message is a text message call directed 

to a wireless device through the use of the telephone number assigned to the 

device.  

7. When an SMS message call is successfully made, the recipient’s cell 

phone rings or vibrates, alerting him or her that a call is being received. As cellular 

telephones are mobile and are frequently carried on their owner’s person, calls to 

cellular telephones, including SMS messages, may be received by the called party 

virtually anywhere worldwide and instantaneously. 
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8. Senders of SMS messages can embed hyperlinks in their messages 

that, when selected, take message recipients directly to their websites where they 

can make direct purchases.  

B. Defendant Transmits Text Messages to Consumers Who Have Not 

Provided Prior Express Written Consent.   

 

9. Luminess is a cosmetics company that sells a variety of products and 

markets itself as the #1 Global Leader in Airbrush Systems and Airbrush 

Cosmetics. 

10. In an effort to promote Luminess’s business and to sell its products 

and solicit consumer purchases, Defendant engaged in bulk SMS messaging 

campaigns.  

11. Defendant places these text messages to consumers from the same 

“short code” 445-54. A short code is akin to a telephone number for text messages 

and is indicative of autodialer technology.  

12. Despite the fact that Defendant’s bulk SMS messaging campaigns 

contain advertisements and constitute telemarketing, Defendant fails to obtain the 

required prior express written consent from consumers as set forth in 47 C.F.R. § 

64.1200, et seq. 
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13. Defendant made, or had made on its behalf, the same (or substantially 

the same) text message calls, en masse, to thousands of cellular telephone numbers 

throughout the United States, using the same short code. 

14. In sending the text messages at issue in this Complaint, Defendant 

utilized an automatic telephone dialing system (“ATDS”). Specifically, the 

hardware and software used by Defendant (or its agent) has the capacity to store, 

produce, and dial random or sequential numbers, and/or receive and store lists of 

telephone numbers, and to dial such numbers, en masse, in an automated fashion 

without human intervention. Defendant’s automated dialing equipment includes 

features substantially similar to a predictive dialer, inasmuch as it is capable of 

making numerous text message calls simultaneously (all without human 

intervention). Defendant also used a short code and technology that seemingly 

solicited automated opt outs. 

C. Defendant Transmits Text Messages to Consumers Who Have 

Expressly Opted-Out. 

 

15. An additional and pressing problem for the Defendant stems from its 

refusal to honor properly submitted opt-out requests. 

16. That is, Defendant sends unauthorized SMS text messages to cellular 

subscribers who have expressly “opted-out” or requested not to receive text 

messages by responding “STOP” or with similar commands like END, CANCEL, 
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QUIT etc. Defendant was required to honor each STOP request as a clear 

expression of intent to terminate any prior form of consent. Accordingly, any SMS 

text message (other than a final, one-time confirmation text message confirming 

the recipient’s desire to not receive such messages) sent to a cellular subscriber 

after receiving an express STOP or similar request was sent without prior express 

consent in violation of the TCPA. 

17. To help mobile marketers navigate regulatory compliance, the Mobile 

Marketing Association (“MMA”) publishes specific guidelines based on accepted 

industry practices for all mobile marketers. Those guidelines include industry best 

practices for processing and honoring stop requests from consumers. 

18. The FCC has made clear that companies must provide an opt-out 

mechanism in their text messages and that—at most—a single text may be sent 

after the consumer exercises his/her right to opt-out confirming the opt-out. See 

Osorio v. State Farm Bank, F.S.B., 746 F.3d 1242, 1255 (11th Cir. 2014); see also 

In re Rules and Regulations Implementing the Tel. Consumer Protection Act of 

1991, Declaratory Ruling as to Petition of SoundBite Communications, Inc., CG 

Docket No. 20–278 (Nov. 29, 2012) (“SoundBite Ruling ”); see also Gager v. Dell 

Fin. Servs., LLC, 727 F.3d 265, 272 (3d Cir. 2013) (“In sum, we find that the 

TCPA provides consumers with the right to revoke their prior express consent to 
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be contacted on cellular phones by autodialing systems.”); see also Munro v. King 

Broad. Co., No. C13-1308JLR, 2013 WL 6185233, at *3 (W.D. Wash. Nov. 26, 

2013) (“[T]he weight of authority suggests that consent may be revoked under the 

TCPA and that if messages continue after consent is revoked, those messages 

violate the TCPA.”) (unpublished decision) (collecting cases). 

19. Indeed, the MMA’s October 2012 U.S. Consumer Best Practices for 

Messaging echoes this standard by stating, “[a] subscriber must be able to stop 

participating and receiving messages from any program by sending STOP to the 

short code used for that program. . . END, CANCEL, UNSUBSCRIBE, or QUIT 

should also be opt-out key words for all programs; however content providers 

should feature the word STOP in their advertising and messaging. . . When sent, 

these words cancel the subscriber’s previous opt-in for messaging.” Further, “[t]he 

content provider must record and store all opt-out transactions.” 

20. CTIA
1
 similarly advises that “[s]hortcode programs must respond to, 

at a minimum, the universal keywords STOP, END, CANCEL, UNSUBSCRIBE, 

and QUIT . . . and, if the user is subscribed, by opting the user out of the program.” 

                                                 
1
 The CTIA is an international non-profit organization that audits and enforces the 

rules surrounding carrier-based text messaging programs. Together, the MMA and 

the CTIA establish and publish guidelines setting forth accepted industry best 

practices for mobile marketing. 
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Further, “[r]ecurring programs must promote opt-out instructions at regular 

intervals in content or service messages, at least once per month,” and “[u]sers 

must be able to opt out at any time.” See CTIA Compliance Assurance Solution 

Mobile Commerce Compliance Handbook, Version 1.2, effective August 1, 2013. 

21. Notwithstanding such authorities, Defendant ignores the FCC and 

industry guidelines and instead fails to honor requests by consumers to opt-out or 

unsubscribe to the SMS text messages. 

22. That is, despite receiving multiple express "STOP" requests from 

Plaintiff and other cellular subscribers, Defendant continues to send automated text 

messages to these subscribers. 

23. Defendant knows, or acts in conscious disregard of the fact, that its 

SMS text messages to these cellular subscribers are unauthorized. Reply message 

STOP requests are, by design, sent to Defendant’s short code, 445-54, thereby 

directly informing (and at the very least putting Defendant on actual and 

constructive notice) Defendant that any subsequent messages are unauthorized. 

Ultimately, consumers are forced to bear the costs and annoyance of receiving 

these unsolicited and unauthorized text messages. 
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 D. Plaintiff’s Experience with Defendant 

 

 24. On July 15, 2017, absent any prior express written consent, Defendant 

began sending Plaintiff SMS messages directly to her cellular telephone. 

 25. Following the receipt of the July 15, 2017 message, Plaintiff, in 

accordance with Defendant’s own instructions for opting out, replied “Stop” to 

opt-out of future text messages. 

 26. Despite following Defendant’s instructions, on July 29, 2017, Plaintiff 

received another text message from Defendant, which advertised its products. 

Again, Plaintiff responded “Stop”:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 27. Defendant again ignored Plaintiff’s request and sent yet another text 

message on September 2, 2017. 
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 28. On September 16, 2017, Plaintiff received another text message from 

Defendant. Plaintiff immediately responded “Stop”: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 29. Again, Defendant ignored Plaintiff's Stop request and sent another 

unauthorized text message on October 21, 2017: 
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 30. Hence, despite repeated STOP requests and attempts to get the 

messages to end Defendant refused to end the transmission of text messages and 

likewise never confirmed the receipt of the STOP requests. Instead, Defendant sent 

another unsolicited text message inviting Plaintiff to its "CYBER MONDAY" sale 

on November 27, 2017: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31. Plaintiff continued to receive substantially similar text messages on a 

regular basis, approximately twice per month. 

32. Each text message contained a link that directs Plaintiff to 

Defendant’s website, http://luminessair.com. 
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33. Plaintiff has grown increasingly frustrated by the inability to stop the 

repeated harassing text messages being sent by Defendant.  

34. By continuing to make unauthorized text message calls as alleged 

herein, Defendant has caused Plaintiff and other consumers actual harm and 

cognizable legal injury. This includes the aggravation, nuisance, and invasion of 

privacy that results from the receipt of such unwanted text messages in addition to 

a loss of value realized for the monies consumers paid to their wireless carriers for 

the receipt of such text messages.  

35. Furthermore, the text messages interfered with Plaintiff’s and the 

other Class members’ use and enjoyment of their cellphones, including the related 

data (by consuming storage space), software, and hardware components.  

36. The text messages were annoying and persisted despite being told to 

Stop. Defendant also caused substantial injury to their phones by causing wear and 

tear on their property, consuming battery life, and appropriating cellular minutes 

and data.  

37. In the present case, a consumer could be subjected to many 

unsolicited text messages as Defendant does not provide any functioning 

mechanism to opt-out and thus fails to honor opt-out requests despite soliciting and 

receiving Stop requests. 
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38. Having tried to no avail to get the messages to stop, Plaintiff, on 

behalf of herself and the classes of similarly situated individuals, brings suit under 

the Telephone Consumer Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. § 227, et seq., which prohibits 

unsolicited voice and text calls to cell phones—to end the unlawful conduct of 

Defendant.  

39. On behalf of the Classes, Plaintiff also seeks an injunction requiring 

Defendant to cease all wireless spam activities and an award of statutory damages 

to the class members, together with costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

 

 40. Plaintiff brings this action seeking class certification accordance with 

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(b)(2) and Rule 23(b)(3) on behalf of herself 

and the following Classes: 

No Consent Class: All persons in the United States who (1) from a 

date four years prior to the filing of the initial complaint in this case to 

the date notice is sent to the Class, (2) received on their cellphone at 

least one text message from Defendant, or a third person acting on 

behalf of Defendant, (3) for the purpose of selling Defendant’s 

products or services, (4) using the same short code and equipment that 

was used to send the messages to Plaintiff, and (5) for whom 

Defendant claims it obtained prior express consent in the same 

manner as Defendant claims it obtained any prior express consent to 

message Plaintiff. 

 

Replied Stop Class: All persons in the United States who (1) from a 

date four years prior to the filing of the initial complaint in this case to 

the date notice is sent to the Class, (2) received on their cellphone at 
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least one text message from Defendant, or a third person acting on 

behalf of Defendant, (3) replied to the text message with the words 

STOP, END, CANCEL, or similar language, and (4) thereafter 

received at least one additional text message to their same cellphone 

number other than a message simply confirming their opt-out request. 

 

 41. The following individuals are excluded from the Classes: (1) any 

Judge or Magistrate presiding over this action and members of their families; (2) 

Defendant, Defendant’s subsidiaries, parents, successors, predecessors, and any 

entity in which Defendant or its parents have a controlling interest and its current 

or former employees, officers, and directors; (3) Plaintiff’s attorneys; (4) persons 

who properly execute and file a timely request for exclusion from the classes; (5) 

the legal representatives, successors or assigns of any such excluded persons; and 

(6) persons whose claims against Defendant have been fully and finally 

adjudicated and/or released. Plaintiff anticipates the need to amend the classes’ 

definitions following discovery regarding the size and scope of the alleged classes 

 42. On information and belief, there are hundreds, if not thousands, of 

members of the Classes such that joinder of all members in impracticable. 

 43. There are several questions of law and fact common to the claims of 

Plaintiff and the other members of the Classes, and those questions predominate 

over any questions that may affect individual members of the Classes. Common 

questions for the Class members that may be answered in a single stroke include 
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but are not limited to the following: 

a. whether Defendant’s conduct constitutes a violation of the 

TCPA; 

b. whether Defendant utilized an automatic telephone dialing 

system to send text messages to members of the Classes; 

c. whether members of the Classes are entitled to treble damages 

based on the willfulness of Defendant’s conduct; and 

d. whether members of the Replied Stop class revoked their 

consent by responding STOP, END, CANCEL or with similar 

language.  

 44. The factual and legal basis of Defendant’s liability to Plaintiff and to 

the other members of the Classes are the same, resulting in injury to the Plaintiff 

and to all of the other members of the Classes, including the annoyance and 

aggravation associated with such messages as well as the loss of data and 

temporary inability to enjoy and use their cellphones, as a result of the 

transmission of the wireless spam alleged herein.  

 45. Plaintiff and the other members of the Classes have all suffered harm 

and damages as a result of Defendant’s unlawful and wrongful conduct of 

transmitting wireless spam. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the 
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members of the Classes as all members of the Classes are similarly affected by 

Defendant’s wrongful conduct. Plaintiff, like other members of the Classes, 

received unsolicited spam text message calls from Defendant. Plaintiff is 

advancing the same claims and legal theory on behalf of herself and all absent 

members of the Classes. 

 46. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests 

of the other members of the Classes. Plaintiff’s claims are made in a representative 

capacity on behalf of the other members of the Classes. Plaintiff has no interests 

antagonistic to the interests of the other members of the proposed Classes and is 

subject to no unique defenses. Plaintiff has retained counsel with substantial 

experience in prosecuting complex litigation and TCPA class actions. Plaintiff and 

her counsel are committed to vigorously prosecuting this action on behalf of the 

members of the Classes and have the financial resources to do so. Neither Plaintiff 

nor her counsel has any interests adverse to those of the other members of the 

Classes. 

 47. The suit may be maintained as a class action under Federal Rule of 

Civil Procedure 23(b)(2) because Defendant has acted, and/or has refused to act, 

on grounds generally applicable to the Classes, thereby making appropriate final 

injunctive relief. As the messages continue to be sent in spite of Plaintiff’s and the 
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Class Members’ STOP requests, injunctive relief is necessary and appropriate to 

require Defendant to discontinue sending unsolicited and unauthorized spam text 

messages. Likewise, Defendant has acted and fails to act on grounds generally 

applicable to the Plaintiff and the other members of the Classes in transmitting the 

wireless spam at issue, requiring the Court’s imposition of uniform relief to ensure 

compatible standards of conduct toward the members of the Classes. 

 48. In addition, this suit may be maintained as a class action under 

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(b)(3) because a class action is superior to all 

other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy. 

There are no governmental lawsuits or other enforcement actions. 

 49. Absent a class action, most members of the Classes would find the 

cost of litigating their claims to be prohibitive and would have no effective 

remedy. The class treatment of common questions of law and fact is also superior 

to multiple individual actions or piecemeal litigation in that it conserves the 

resources of the courts and the litigants, and promotes consistency and efficiency 

of adjudication. The claims asserted herein are applicable to all customers 

throughout the United States who received an unsolicited spam text message from 

Defendant. The injury suffered by each individual class member is relatively small 

in comparison to the burden and expense of individual prosecution of the complex 
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and extensive litigation necessitated by Defendant’s conduct. It would be virtually 

impossible for members of the Classes individually to redress effectively the 

wrongs done to them. Even if the members of the Classes could afford such 

litigation, the court system could not. Individualized litigation presents a potential 

for inconsistent or contradictory judgments. Individualized litigation increases the 

delay and expense to all parties, and to the court system, presented by the complex 

legal and factual issues of the case. By contrast, the class action device presents far 

fewer management difficulties, and provides the benefits of single adjudication, 

economy of scale, and comprehensive supervision by a single court. 

Adequate notice can be given to the members of the Classes directly using 

information maintained in Defendant’s records or through notice by publication. 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

Telephone Consumer Protection Act 

(Violation of 47 U.S.C. § 227, et seq.) 

(On behalf of Plaintiff and the No Consent Class) 

 

 50. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the foregoing allegations as if fully 

set forth herein. 

 51. Defendant sent unsolicited and unwanted telemarketing text message 

calls to cellular telephone numbers belonging to Plaintiff and the other members of 

the No Consent Class, without their prior express written consent in an effort to 

increase sales for its products. 
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 52. Defendant failed to obtain any prior express written consent that 

included, as required by 47 C.F.R. § 64.1200(f)(8)(i), a “clear and conspicuous” 

disclosure informing the person signing that: 

(A) By executing the agreement, such person authorizes the seller to 

deliver or cause to be delivered to the signatory telemarketing calls 

using an automatic telephone dialing system or an artificial or 

prerecorded voice; and 

 

(B) The person is not required to sign the agreement (directly or 

indirectly), or agree to enter into such an agreement as a condition of 

purchasing any property, goods, or services. 

 

 53. Further, Defendant sent the text message calls using an ATDS. On 

information and belief, the equipment had the capacity to store or produce 

telephone numbers to be called using a random or sequential number generator, 

and/or to receive and store lists of phone numbers, and to dial such numbers, en 

masse, simultaneously and without human intervention. 

 54. By sending unsolicited text message calls to Plaintiff and members of 

the No Consent Class’s cellular telephones without prior express consent, and by 

utilizing an ATDS, Defendant violated 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(A)(iii). 

 55. As a result of Defendant’s unlawful conduct, Plaintiff and the 

members of the No Consent Class suffered actual damages in the form of monies 

paid to receive the unsolicited text messages on their cellular telephones and, under 

Section 227(b)(3)(B), are each entitled to, inter alia, a minimum of $500 in 
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damages for each such violation of the TCPA. 

 56. Should the Court determine that Defendant’s conduct was willful and 

knowing, the Court may, pursuant to Section 227(b)(3), treble the amount of 

statutory damages recoverable by Plaintiff and the other members of the No 

Consent Class. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

Telephone Consumer Protection Act 

(Violation of 47 U.S.C. § 227, et seq.) 

(On Behalf of Plaintiff and the Replied Stop Class) 

 

 57. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the foregoing allegations as if fully 

set forth herein. 

 58. Defendant and/or its agent(s) transmitted unsolicited text message 

calls to cellular telephone numbers belonging to Plaintiff and the other members of 

the Replied Stop Class using equipment that, upon information and belief, had the 

capacity to store or produce telephone numbers to be called, using a random or 

sequential number generator, and/or to receive and store lists of phone numbers, 

and to dial such numbers, en masse, without human intervention. 

 59. The telephone dialing equipment utilized by Defendant and/or its 

agent, which is substantially similar to a predictive dialer, dialed numbers from a 

list, or dialed numbers form a database of telephone numbers, in an automatic and 

systematic manner. 
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 60. These text calls were made en masse and without the consent of the 

Plaintiff and the other members of the Replied Stop Class to receive such wireless 

spam. Indeed, consent had been revoked by everyone since they each had 

responded with the common SMS codes to opt-out of further communications, 

such as “STOP,” “REMOVE,” “END,” or “CANCEL.” 

 61. The text messages to Plaintiff and the Replied Stop Class were made 

after any consent had been expressly revoked by responding with an opt-out 

request, such as STOP, END, CANCEL, or similar language.  

 62. Based on such conduct, Defendant has violated 47 U.S.C. § 

227(b)(1)(A)(iii). 

 63. As a result of such conduct, Plaintiff and the other members of the 

Replied Stop Class are each entitled to, under section 227(b)(3)(B), a minimum of 

$500.00 in damages for each violation of such act. 

 64. Additionally, because the messages steadily continue despite multiple 

requests that they STOP, the violations are capable of repetition, even if Defendant 

were to temporarily place them on hold. The Court should enjoin such continued 

harassment. 

 65. Defendant’s conduct was willful. Defendant had notice of the Stop 

requests. In the event that the Court determines that Defendant’s conduct was 
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willful and knowing, it may, under section 227(b)(3)(C), treble the amount of 

statutory damages recoverable by Plaintiff and the other members of the Class. 

Defendant received the STOP requests and similar opt-out instructions and 

therefore was on notice that its text messages were being transmitted in violation of 

the TCPA. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Ruthrauff, on behalf of herself and the classes, 

prays for the following relief: 

1. An order certifying this case as a class action on behalf of the Classes 

as defined above; appointing Plaintiff Ruthrauff as the representative 

of the Classes, appointing her attorneys as Class Counsel, and 

ordering notice that comports with due process to be disseminated to 

the Class members; 

2. An award of actual and statutory damages to be paid into a common 

fund for the benefit of the Classes; 

3. An injunction requiring Defendant to cease all unsolicited text 

messaging and to honor opt-out requests, and otherwise protecting the 

interests of the Classes; 

4. An award of reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs to be paid out of the 

common fund;  
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5. A declaration that Defendant’s conduct violated the TCPA; 

6. A declaration that Defendant’s dialing equipment constitutes an 

automatic telephone dialing system under the TCPA; and 

7. Such further and other relief the Court deems reasonable and just. 

JURY DEMAND 

 Plaintiff requests a trial by jury of all claims that can be so tried. 

Dated: February 1 , 2018 CYNTHIA RUTHRAUFF, individually, 

and on behalf of all others similarly situated, 

 

By:   s/ Jennifer Auer Jordan   

One of Plaintiff’s Attorneys 

Jennifer Auer Jordan Georgia Bar Number: 

027857 (jordan@ssjwlaw.com) 

Shamp Speed Jordan Woodward LLC 

1718 Peachtree Street NW, Suite 660 

Atlanta, Georgia 30309 

Tel: 404-893-9400 

 

Steven L. Woodrow 

(swoodrow@woodrowpeluso.com)* 

Patrick H. Peluso 

(ppeluso@woodrowpeluso.com)* 

Taylor T. Smith 

(tsmith@woodrowpeluso.com)* 

Woodrow & Peluso, LLC 

3900 East Mexico Ave., Suite 300  

Denver, Colorado 80210 

Telephone: (720) 213-0675 

Facsimile: (303) 927-0809 

Counsel for Plaintiff and the Putative 

Classes 

*pro hac vice admission to be filed 
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PROCEEDING              STATE COURT APPELLATE COURT              REOPENED  (Specify District) TRANSFER JUDGMENT

               MULTIDISTRICT
              8 LITIGATION -            

               DIRECT FILE

V. CAUSE OF ACTION (CITE THE U.S. CIVIL STATUTE UNDER WHICH YOU ARE FILING AND WRITE A BRIEF STATEMENT OF CAUSE -  DO NOT CITE
JURISDICTIONAL STATUTES UNLESS DIVERSITY)

(IF COMPLEX, CHECK REASON BELOW)

1. Unusually large number of parties. 6. Problems locating or preserving evidence

2. Unusually large number of claims or defenses. 7. Pending parallel investigations or actions by government.

3. Factual issues are exceptionally complex 8. Multiple use of experts.

4. Greater than normal volume of evidence. 9. Need for discovery outside United States boundaries.

5. Extended discovery period is needed. 10. Existence of highly technical issues and proof.

CONTINUED ON REVERSE
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

RECEIPT # AMOUNT  $  APPLYING IFP  MAG. JUDGE (IFP) ______________________

JUDGE MAG. JUDGE NATURE OF SUIT             CAUSE OF ACTION______________________
(Referral)

Cynthia Ruthrauff, individually and on behalf of all others 
similarly situated

Luminess Direct, LLC, a Texas limited liability company.

Cobb County, GA

Jennifer Auer Jordan 
jordan@ssjwlaw.com
1718 Peachtree Street NW, Suite 660
Atlanta, Georgia 30309
404-893-9400

✔

✔

Violations of the Telephone Consumer Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. 227, et seq.

✔

✔

✔
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VI. NATURE OF SUIT (PLACE AN “X” IN ONE BOX ONLY)

CONTRACT - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
150 RECOVERY OF OVERPAYMENT &  
         ENFORCEMENT OF JUDGMENT
152 RECOVERY OF DEFAULTED STUDENT               
        LOANS (Excl. Veterans)
153 RECOVERY OF OVERPAYMENT OF 
        VETERAN'S BENEFITS

CONTRACT - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
110 INSURANCE
120 MARINE
130 MILLER ACT
140 NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENT
151 MEDICARE ACT
160 STOCKHOLDERS' SUITS
190 OTHER CONTRACT
195 CONTRACT PRODUCT LIABILITY
196 FRANCHISE

REAL PROPERTY - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

210 LAND CONDEMNATION
220 FORECLOSURE
230 RENT LEASE & EJECTMENT
240 TORTS TO LAND
245 TORT PRODUCT LIABILITY
290 ALL OTHER REAL PROPERTY

TORTS - PERSONAL INJURY - "4" MONTHS
DISCOVERY TRACK

310 AIRPLANE
315 AIRPLANE PRODUCT LIABILITY
320 ASSAULT, LIBEL & SLANDER
330 FEDERAL EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
340 MARINE
345 MARINE PRODUCT LIABILITY
350 MOTOR VEHICLE
355 MOTOR VEHICLE PRODUCT LIABILITY
360 OTHER PERSONAL INJURY
362 PERSONAL INJURY - MEDICAL
       MALPRACTICE
365 PERSONAL INJURY - PRODUCT LIABILITY   
367 PERSONAL INJURY - HEALTH CARE/

   PHARMACEUTICAL PRODUCT LIABILITY
368 ASBESTOS PERSONAL INJURY PRODUCT          

   LIABILITY

TORTS - PERSONAL PROPERTY - "4" MONTHS
DISCOVERY TRACK

370 OTHER FRAUD
371 TRUTH IN LENDING
380 OTHER PERSONAL PROPERTY DAMAGE       
385 PROPERTY DAMAGE PRODUCT LIABILITY   

BANKRUPTCY - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
422 APPEAL 28 USC 158
423 WITHDRAWAL 28 USC 157

CIVIL RIGHTS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
440 OTHER CIVIL RIGHTS
441 VOTING
442 EMPLOYMENT
443 HOUSING/ ACCOMMODATIONS
445 AMERICANS with DISABILITIES -  Employment 
446 AMERICANS with DISABILITIES -  Other
448 EDUCATION 

IMMIGRATION - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
462 NATURALIZATION APPLICATION
465 OTHER IMMIGRATION ACTIONS

PRISONER PETITIONS - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

463 HABEAS CORPUS- Alien Detainee
510 MOTIONS TO VACATE SENTENCE
530 HABEAS CORPUS
535 HABEAS CORPUS DEATH PENALTY
540 MANDAMUS & OTHER
550 CIVIL RIGHTS - Filed Pro se
555 PRISON CONDITION(S) - Filed Pro se
560 CIVIL DETAINEE: CONDITIONS OF
       CONFINEMENT

PRISONER PETITIONS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

550 CIVIL RIGHTS - Filed by Counsel
555 PRISON CONDITION(S) - Filed by Counsel

FORFEITURE/PENALTY - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

625 DRUG RELATED SEIZURE OF PROPERTY
         21 USC 881
690 OTHER

LABOR - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY TRACK
710 FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT
720 LABOR/MGMT. RELATIONS
740 RAILWAY LABOR ACT
751 FAMILY and MEDICAL LEAVE ACT
790 OTHER LABOR LITIGATION
791 EMPL. RET. INC. SECURITY ACT

PROPERTY RIGHTS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

820 COPYRIGHTS
840 TRADEMARK

PROPERTY RIGHTS - "8" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

SOCIAL SECURITY - "0" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

861 HIA (1395ff)
862 BLACK LUNG (923)
863 DIWC (405(g))
863 DIWW (405(g))
864 SSID TITLE XVI
865 RSI (405(g))

FEDERAL TAX SUITS - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

870 TAXES (U.S. Plaintiff or Defendant)
871 IRS - THIRD PARTY 26 USC 7609

OTHER STATUTES - "4" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

375 FALSE CLAIMS ACT
376 Qui Tam  31 USC 3729(a)
400 STATE REAPPORTIONMENT
430 BANKS AND BANKING
450 COMMERCE/ICC RATES/ETC.
460 DEPORTATION
470 RACKETEER INFLUENCED AND CORRUPT           

   ORGANIZATIONS
480 CONSUMER CREDIT
490 CABLE/SATELLITE TV
890 OTHER STATUTORY ACTIONS
891 AGRICULTURAL ACTS
893 ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
895 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT
899 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT /

   REVIEW OR APPEAL OF AGENCY DECISION
950 CONSTITUTIONALITY OF STATE STATUTES

OTHER STATUTES - "8" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

410 ANTITRUST
850 SECURITIES / COMMODITIES / EXCHANGE

OTHER STATUTES - “0" MONTHS DISCOVERY
TRACK

896   ARBITRATION 
(Confirm / Vacate / Order / Modify)

* PLEASE NOTE DISCOVERY
TRACK FOR EACH CASE TYPE.
SEE LOCAL RULE 26.3

VII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT:
                                                                                                                                                                                                        
            CHECK IF CLASS ACTION UNDER F.R.Civ.P. 23 DEMAND $_____________________________
                                                                                                                               
JURY DEMAND        YES         NO  (CHECK YES ONLY IF DEMANDED IN COMPLAINT)

VIII. RELATED/REFILED CASE(S) IF ANY
                                                                                                                                                                 JUDGE_______________________________ DOCKET NO._______________________

CIVIL CASES ARE DEEMED RELATED IF THE PENDING CASE INVOLVES:  (CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX)

1. PROPERTY INCLUDED IN AN EARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SUIT.
2. SAME ISSUE OF FACT OR ARISES OUT OF THE SAME EVENT OR TRANSACTION INCLUDED IN AN EARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SUIT.
3. VALIDITY OR INFRINGEMENT OF THE SAME PATENT, COPYRIGHT OR TRADEMARK INCLUDED IN AN EARLIER NUMBERED PENDING SUIT.
4. APPEALS ARISING OUT OF THE SAME BANKRUPTCY CASE AND ANY CASE RELATED THERETO WHICH HAVE BEEN DECIDED BY THE SAME

BANKRUPTCY JUDGE.
5. REPETITIVE CASES FILED BY PRO SE LITIGANTS.
6. COMPANION OR RELATED CASE TO CASE(S) BEING SIMULTANEOUSLY FILED (INCLUDE ABBREVIATED STYLE OF OTHER CASE(S)):

7. EITHER SAME OR ALL OF THE PARTIES AND ISSUES IN THIS CASE WERE PREVIOUSLY INVOLVED IN CASE NO.          , WHICH WAS
DISMISSED.  This case          IS      IS NOT (check one box) SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME CASE. 

   SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD            DATE

830 PATENT
835 PATENT-ABBREVIATED NEW DRUG      

APPLICATIONS (ANDA) - a/k/a 
Hatch-Waxman cases

✔

✔

✔

/s/ Jennifer Auer Jordan 2/19/2018
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ClassAction.org
This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this 
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